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The 0ld Arsenal in City Park is a two=-story brick building with
two wings flanking a central tower. All of the stoue used in the
foundations came from Big Rock, north of the Arkansas River, and, all
the timber used in construction was cut and hauled from around Pine
Bluff, The brick may have been made in the brickyard of Thomas Thorn,
who also supplied the brick that was used in constructing the Old
State House., Beams were 14" X 14Y, joined with thick iron plates and
bolts and placed on 115 foot centers.

Today the exterior of the building is completely rebuilt, The
jicterior has been altered only slightly to accomodate its present use
as a Museum of Science and Natural History.
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Note: The use of the word Yrebuilt" was perhaps misleading, but substan-
ti1ally corrmscts; at least as it applies to the woodan verandas and staiv-
ways., The basic brick and masonry struciture remains unaltered, while the
wooden sppurtenances have bezen restorsd teo their pre-1900 appearance,
Sze attached Continuation Sheets for more detailed description,
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7. DESCRIPTION CONT'D s

The 01d Arsenal ls a two-story, brick, rectangular structure
1221 long, L2' wide, with a full basemeni, and a three-story cren-
ellated tower, octagonal in shape and 25% in diameter. The tower is
Located at the center of the north side of the building.

Rubble exterior walls, 3' 11" thick, rise from the foundations to
the first floor level, Above this point exterior walls are brick
averazing 2' 9" thick. All interior partitionz are wood frame, First
and second floor joists are 3"X12"s on 13" centers. First floor joists
are supported by heavy wood girders supported by wood posts, The roof
atructure consists of heavy wood trusses spaced approximately 10" c¢n
centers, supporting §"X10" purlins and 3"X6" rafters 16" on caniers,
and 3"XL" ceiling rafiers 16" on centers.

A wood veranda runs the full lepngth of the first floor on the
" south side, the roof being supported by wood columns spaced approx- '
inmately 17' on centers. A two-story veranda runs aleng the north side
from the ends of the building, terminating a%t the octagonal tower in
- the center of the structure., Lintels over narrow windows are limestone,
ﬁ Those over wide windows are wood. '

The stones of the foundations is thought Lo have comz from Big
Roek, north of the Arkansas River. All timber used in the conatruction
came from nzar Pine Fluff, The brieck is belisved to bave bsen made in
. the brickyard of Thomas Thorn, who also supplied the brick thab was ussd
& in tha construction of the ¢1ld State House,
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The building is in excellent condition, having recently undergone
an exterior renovation. While the basic brick structure has remainzd
unaltersd over the years, there have been many changes in the woodsn
verandas and exterior stairways. It is entirely possible that the:
tuilding was originally built without verandas. An 1853 Harper's
engraring shows the rear of the arsenal and no veranda exists at that
tize, Existing photographs of the bujlding prier to 1900, however,
shew the varandas existing on the front of the building in much the
827w marner as they are today. Photographs and measured drawings rade
@uring the 1935 Historic American Buildings Survey show the two veran-
das, but the second floor veranda was without a roof at that time, The
presant restoration conforms to the pre-1900 appearance.

Ag previously noted, virtually 211 alterations have besn %o the
w0oden, exterior portions of the building. Some balustraces have been
rezov2d from the first floor verandas and new exterior stairways to the
EP:;ral door of the octagonal tower have been installed in order to
celier channel the flow of visitors through the main entrance of the
wa,  The only interior changes have been the addition of some new
itions at the basement level. (See lontimuation Sheat #2)
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7. DESCRIPTION CONT!D #2

Except for the octagonal tower, the building is not an unusual
structure and it would be difficulit to desecribe 1t as belonging to
any particular style,
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STATEMEMNMT OF SIGNIFICANCE

There had been much talk before 1836 of establishing an arsenal
within the Territory of Arkansas, but Iittle kad been done to actually
get the project started. ‘ .

Just after Arkansas was admitted into the Union, Governor James
Sevier Comway made a plea to the War Department in which he said, "We
trust that the enlightened members of that body {meaning Congress) will
not forget the claims of Arkansas upon the public revenue., We are a
frontier people exposed to savage invasions and are often in pressing
need of assistance and protection which only the Federal goverument
can afford.™

The governor went on to point out that many Indians were constant-
1y passing through on their way to lands further west. The War Dapart-
nent responded and appropriated the sum of $14,000 for am arsemal to be
built at Little Rock, They then sent Lieutenant F, L, Jones of Ammy
to select the site. The site which he chose is the same which today
makes up MacArthur Park.

The next two years were spent drawing up the agreements for the
building supplies, Then in 1838 all was ready to begin, Mr, John Warmley
Walker, a government employee, was sent from Baton Rouge, where he was
supervising the building of an arsenal there, to Little Rock to serve
as supervisor and master builder for the job here. He liked Arkansas

"so well that, after completion of the Arsenal, he decided to make his
home here, According to the 18350 Census, three of his children were
born on Arkansas soil.

From the time of the Arsenal's completion in 1840, until the out-
break of the Ciwvil War, little happened to disturb the regimented life
of the post, Then came the frantic months before the outbreak of the
war. The secession rmovement was growing. Several states had already
seceded and in Arkansas the sentiment was gaining ground, In November
of 1860 the Second United States Artillery was transferred to Little
Rock from Fort Leavenworth, Kamsas, with Captain James Totten in
cormand. -

(See Continuation Sheet)
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8. SIGNIFICANCE CONT!'D

With the secession of South Carolita; December 20, 1860, Arkansas
took steps to secure the Arsenal. On February 8, 1861, Captainm Totten
surrendered the Arsenal, intact, to Henry M., Rector, Governor of Ark~
ansas, The land and the buildings of the arsenal were valued at $100,000
and contained machinery for tha repair of arms, 10,000 stand of arms,
armunition and several camnon.’

On the 6th and 7th of March, 1862, Union forces under General
Samuel Curtis defeated the Confederate forces under General Van Dorn
at the Battle of Pea Ridge., 'This defeat led Van Deorm to withdraw zcross
the Mississippl River in Aptril of 1862, Van Dorn stripped Avxkansas of
men and military supplies and even removed machinery from the arsenal,

In the latter part of May, 1862, Major General Thomas C. Hindman
took command of the military situvation in Arkansas, The arsenal had
nevar heen adequately utilized, The machinery for the manufacture of
armmunition had been operative from the tima of the seizure of the ar-
senal in February of 1861, until its removal by Van Dorn; and Confad-
erate troops, routed through Little Rock had used the machinery to manu-
facture cartidges for themselves. Hindman endeavored to make the
arsznal operative, He secured materials for making ammunition from the
citizens of Little Rock by means of donations, purchases and ilinpressments,
He re-established a laboratory at the arsenal to manufacture ammuniticn,
He emploved ox conscripted gunsmiths, impressed ox purchased tools and
began to utilize the shops of the arsenal to repair damaged guns. In
August of 1862, the Little Rock Arsenal became an official Confederate
Ordnance Station, The arsenal was buillt up and did considerable man-~
ufacture of ammunition and repair of small arms. With the fall of
Little Rock to the Union forces on September 10, 1863, the Confederates
were forced to evacuate the arsenal and to move thelr operaticns to
Arkadelphia and later to Tylerx, Texas, The arsenal remained in Uniom
hands until the end of the war.

After the Civil War the arsenal settled into the routins 1ife of
a peacetime military post. The only truly-significant event that
occured at the post was the birth of Douglas MacArthur on January 26,
1880. ©On April 23, 1892, the arsenal and grounds were traded by the
Federal government for 1000 acres of ground, north of the Arkansas
River, which was owned by the citizens of Little Rock, The arsenal was
turned over to the city with the stipulation that the grounds be “Forever
exclusively devoted to the uses and purposes of a public park,"
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